A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Adrian Samalia, petitioner here and appellant below, asks this 

Court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision tcnninating 

review designated in Pmi B of' this pet it ion pursuunt to RAP 13 .3( a)( l) 

and RAP 13.4(b). 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Mr. Samalia seeks review of the published CoUii of Appeals 

decision dated March 5, 2015, a copy of which is attached as Appendix 

A. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. In a published decision, two judges held that the owner of a 

cell phone loses his privacy interest in any data on his phone when he 

tlees from a pursuing police omcer and leaves the phone behind during 

this flight. The third Comi of Appeals judge dissented, explaining that 

based on the privacy interests protected under article L section 7. the 

police need a wan·ant to search the data contained in a cell phone even 

when the owner has len the phone behind when chased by police. 

The United States Supreme Comi has recognized that cell 

phones store vast amounts of highly personal infonnation. This Court 

has extended article I, section 7's protections to text messages even 



after they are sent to another person's cell phone. Should this Comi 

grant review to address the divided CoUii of Appeals opinion regarding 

whether a cell phone owner retains a privacy interest in his phone's 

contents when not in immediate possession of the phone? 

2. After Mr. Samaha ran from u pursuing, armed police officer, 

the otiicer read through the contents of Mr. Samalia 's cell phone and 

gave it to another officer \vho used it for fmther investigation. The 

Court of Appeals majority concluded that Mr. Samalia abandoned his 

phone by not keeping it in his possession as he ran, applying a 

voluntary abandonment test rooted in Fourth Amendment 

jurisprudence, while the dissent disagreed under miicle 1, section 7. 

Should this Comi grant review to determine vvhether article I, section 7 

requires a di±Terent analysis for assessing when a person abandons the 

private affairs contained in the contents of a cell phone? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

O±Ticer Ryan Yates's license plate reader ale1ied to a stolen car, 

which happened to be a car that had been repmted stolen to him less 

than two weeks earlier. RP 31-34, 4 I. Officer Yates followed and then 

directed car to stop. RP 34. When the driver stepped out of the car, 

Officer Yates drew bis gun and told the driver to get back into the car. 
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RP 35. The driver tled on foot. RP 35-36. A woman in the car also ran 

but another police ot1icer stopped her a few minutes later. RP 36. 

Ot1icer Yates chased the driver but did not catch him. RP 45-46. 

Officer Yates searched through the car for evidence without 

obtaining a search warrant. RP 37-38.47. He found a cell phone in the 

center console. RP 46; CP 29. He could not remember if he opened the 

console when searching the car or the console vvas open. RP 4 7. 1 

Officer Yates looked into the phone's contents to investigate 

who owned it. RP 48. He "scrolled through" the list of personal 

contacts and attempted several phone calls to the contacts listed by the 

phone's owner. RP 38, 48. "[E]ventually someone answered'' the phone 

and Officer Yates spoke to Deylenc Telles. RP 38, 49. 

Pretending he was from out of town, Officer Yates told Ms. 

Telles he found the phone at a bar named Hoops and wanted help 

returning it. RP 56, 59. Ms. Telles is Mr. Samalia's former girltl'iend 

and they have a child together. RP 57, 58. Because Ms. Telles wanted 

to "snoop in the phone," she agreed to meet the caller. RP 38, 57. 
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When Ms. Telles alTived at the agreed location, she was met by 

several police o11icers who asked her what she was doing. RP 61. She 

told them she was walking. RP 60-61. The officers atTested Ms. Telles 

and claimed she was trespassing on private prope1iy although Ms. 

Telles was on the side\\1alk. RP 61. Officer Yates had given the phone 

to another officer, and this other ofTicer used it to call Ms. Telles's 

phone from the listed contact infonnation. CP 29; RP 61. When Ms. 

Telles's phone rang, the officers saw Mr. Samal ia · s picture, name, and 

phone number on the screen ofMs. Telles's phone. RP 61. 

The officers took Ms. Telles's phone and asked her about the 

person who was pictured. RP 61. They brought Ms. Telles to an old 

probation office near the police station and questioned her about Mr. 

Samalia, pressing her for infom1ation about who he hung out with and 

claiming he had been involved in a robbery. RP 62. Ms. Telles did not 

know where Mr. Samaha \vas and after one hour, they let her walk 

home without citing her for trespassing. RP 62. 

1 Because Officer Yates did not know whether he opened the console. 
the trial court refused to find that the console was open before Officer Yates 
entered and searched the car. RP 46-47. 75-76; CP 29 (Finding of fact 3). The 
State bears the burden of proving contested facts at a suppression hearing. State 
v. Armenta, 134 Wn.2d I, 14, 948 P.2d I 280 ( 1997). 
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Mr. Samalia was charged with one count of possession of stolen 

motor vehicle under RCW 9A.56.068 and RCW 9A.56.140(1 ). CP 3. 

The comi initially denied Mr. Samalia's motion to suppress the 

evidence derived from the search of his cell phone without an 

evidentiary hearing. RP 17. The cowi reconsidered the ruling with 

additional infonnation presented at a bench trial. See RP 40-52, 61-63. 

The court again denied the motion to suppress and convicted Mr. 

Samalia based on the cell phone evidence that he was the person who 

drove the stolen car. RP 28, RP 73-74, 78; CP 30-31. 

In a published decision, the Court of Appeals ruled 2-1 that the 

cell phone was abandoned when the police ordered Mr. Samalia to 

remain inside the car at t:,runpoint but Mr. Samalia fled. Slip op. at 7. 

The majority refused to find he retained a privacy interest in the 

contents of his cell phone when he escaped from a pursuing police 

officer. Slip op. at 4. Judge Siddoway dissented, relying on recent 

search and seizure jurisprudence to reason that "police must generally 

secure a warrant before conducting a sean.:h of data on a cell phone

even one that has been left behind in a place \vhere its owner has no 

privacy interest." Slip op. at 3 (Siddoway, J., dissenting). 
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E. ARGUMENT 

Due to the substantial privacy interests a cell phone 
owner retains in the vast data on his cell phone, this 
Court should grant review of the split published 
decision from the Court of Appeals that minimizes 
privacy protections for personal information 
contained in a cell phone. 

I. The contents of cell phones are private and protectedfi·om 
1mrrant/ess searches by police 

Article L section 7 "is a jealous protector of privacy." State 1'. 

Bue/na Valciez, 167 Wn.2d 761,777,224 P.3d 751 (2009). Both the 

Fowih Amendment2 and miiclc I, section i protect individuals from 

intrusions into their privacy, but article I, section 7 ''demands a 

ditlerent approach than does the Foutih Amendment." State 1'. 

Harrington. 167 Wn.2d 656, 670.222 P.3cl92 (2009). It is well-

established that miicle I, section 7 is qualitatively cliflerent from the 

Fomih Amendment and provides greater protections. State 1'. Hinton, 

I 79 Wn.2d 862, 868. 319 P.3cl 9 (20 14 ). 

Washington has a long history of strict protection oftelcphonic 

2 The Fourth Amendment provides: 
The right or the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and 
effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated. 
and no warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported by oath 
or aftirmation, and particularly describing the: place to be searched, and 
the persons or things to be seized. 
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and other electronic communications in this state. Stare v. Gunwa/1, I 06 

Wn.2d 54, 66, 720 P.2d 808 ( 1986); see also Lewis r. Dept. of 

Licensing, 157 Wn.2d 446,465-67, 139 P.3d 1078 (2006) (police 

ot11cer violate privacy act by failing to inform arrestee that conversation 

is recorded); State''· Tomzsend, 147 Wn.2d 666,672,57 P.3d 255 

( 2002) (recognizing Washington's privacy act as one of most restrictive 

in nation); State, .. Clark, 129 Wn.2d 211.222,916 P.2d 384 (1996) 

(detailing historical protections for electronic communications). 

The infom1ation contained on a cell phone is similar to the 

telephone logs and pen register at issue in Gwnrall. where this CoUI1 

held that records of completed long distance calls and numbers dialed 

ti'om a telephone require a wan·ant due to the private nature of 

telephone communications. 106 Wn.2d at 68. 

A cell phone also holds infom1ation akin to a global positioning 

satellite (GPS) tracking device. In State, .. Jackson, 150 Wn.2d 251, 

261-62, 76 P.3d 217 (2003), this CoUI1 held warrantless tracking of a 

car by G PS violates article I, section 7. V chicles "arc used to take 

people to a vast number of places that can reveal preferences, 

' Article T, section 7 provides, "No person shall be disturbed in his 
private affairs, or his home invaded, without authority of law." 
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alignments, associations, personal ails and foibles. The GPS tracking 

devices record all of these travels, and thus can provide a detailed 

picture of one's life." !d. at 262. Police must obtain a wan·ant to track a 

person's car with GPS due to this exposun: of the ddails of a person's 

private life. Id. 

A cell phone maintains "telltale'' information about a person. 

more than the papers contained in a person's garbage placed on the 

curb. See State 1'. Boland, 115 Wn.2d 571,578,582,800 P.2d 1112 

(1990). The location of the garbage can on the street does not provide 

the State with authority to search it. Id. at 581. Likewise, by scrolling 

through a cell phone's contnct list or numbers dialed the police may 

"acquire an enonmms amount of personal infonnation about the 

citizen." Jackson, I 50 Wn.2d at 264. The infonnation is both 

historically protected and involves intimate details of a person's life. Id. 

In Riley''· Cal[{'ornia, _U.S._, I 34 S.Ct. 2473, 2494, 189 L.Ed 

430 (20 I 4 ), the Supreme Comi unanimously agreed that because 

modern cell phones arc essentially ''minicomputers" capable of storing 

an enormous amount of information about "the privacies of life," they 

cannot be searched without n wanant. Searches of digital information 

''involve a degree of intrusiveness much greater in quantity, if not 



different in kind, from searches of other containers.'' United States, .. 

Payton. 573 F.3d 859, 861 (9111 Cir. 2009). The scope of private 

information available on a cell phone requires ''greater vigilance" from 

courts when authorizing a search that ·'could become a vehicle for the 

government to gain access to a larger pool of data that it has no 

probable cause to collect." United States v. Schesso, 730 F.3d 1040, 

1042 (9th Cir. 2013). 

In Hinton, decided before Riley, this Coutt held that the contents 

of text messages arc protected private affairs under mticle 1, section 7, 

even after they are sent to someone else and read by the police on the 

recipient's phone. 179 Wn.2d at 869-70. 

Mr. Samalia had a privacy interest in the infom1ation stored in 

his cell phone and was entitled to hold it safe from warrantless 

governmental trespass. 

2. Substantial public interestfal'Ors rel'ieH' ofthe dil·ided 
Court o.(Appeals opinion based on the ubiqui(v of'cell 
phone possession and the breadth of personal 
il!formation contained. 

As Judge Sidcloway explained in her dissent, "No repmted 

Washington decision has directly addressed whether a citizen 

relinquishes his reasonable expectation of privacy in the data on his cell 
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phone by leaving the phone behind at the scene of a crime." Slip op. at 

8 (Siddoway, J., dissenting). 

This Com1 should grant review because "the voluminous private 

infonnation likely to be found on a cell phone remains protected by 

article I, section 7 of the Washington constitution even when the phone 

is left behind in a place where the defendant has no privacy interest." 

!d. Courts must subject cell phone searches by police officers to 

"greater vigilance" because such searches could give the government 

unfettered access to data that they lack probable cause to collect. 

Schesso, 730 F.3d at 1042. 

Requiring a search warrant will appropriately limit police 

actions when combing through a phone's contents by tethering the 

search to the necessary level of suspicion connected to specified 

criminal activity. It is not an onerous burden. They could have obtained 

a warrant telephonically, but did not do so. See, e.g., State 1'. Schult:::., 

170 Wn.2d 746, 752, 248 P.3d 484 (20 II) ("OfTiccr Hill sought and 

received a search warrant by telephone."). The police were not 

permitted to ritle through this closed container that accesses a vast array 

of private information without a wanant. 
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3. Mr. Samalia did not1·oluntari~v abandon his privacy interest 
in his telephone 1rlzcn lze allegedly.f!edfi·om the police 

The Comi of Appeals majmity affim1ed the trial comi's 

conclusion that "because the driver ran from the vehicle, he voluntarily 

abandoned the cell phone located in the \·chicle.'' CP 31 ~ RP 46; Slip 

op. at 4-6. It also excused the search for a reason not found by the trial 

courL the "exigency" exception for pursuing a fleeing suspect 

recognized under the Fomih Amendment and insisted any information 

gained from the cell phone was attenuated because it lured Ms. Telles 

to provide the connection between Mr. Samal ia and the phone. The 

dissenting opinion corTectly disposes with each contention. Slip op. at 

5-8 (Siddoway, L dissenting). The majority misconstrued the legal 

requirements of abandonment and the nature of the privacy interest in 

the private information stored in a person's cell phone. 

Unlike the Fomih Amendment, miicle L section 7 docs not 

confine the right to be free from governmental intrusion to "to 'a 

protected places' analysis, or 'to the subjective privacy cxpcctntions of 

modern citizens who, due to well publicized advances in surveillance 

technology, arc learning to expect diminished privacy in many aspects 

of their lives.'" Hinton, 179 Wn.2d at 869-70 (internal citation 
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omitted). The extreme scope of private information contained in a cell 

phone cannot be forgotten in analyzing the authority ofthe police to 

search it without a wmTant. See Riley, 134 S. Ct. at 2489-91. 

To abandon a privacy interest. one dispositive question is 

\vhcther a defendant tried to hide his ownership in propetiy as opposed 

to failing to ask for it or forgetting it. See e.g., State ''· Dugas, 109 

Wn.App. 592, 595, 36 P.3d 577 (2001) (property not abandoned even 

though defendant never tried to retrieve jacket during or after arrest. 

where he did not intentionally distance self from jacket to hide it); State 

''·Kealey, 80 Wn.App. 162, 165, 168-69,907 P.2d 319 (1995) (mislaid 

purse not purposefully left behind in store and therefore defendant did 

not relinquish her expectation of privacy); cf Stater. Reynolds, 144 

Wn.2d 282, 284-85, 291 27 P.3d 200 (200 I) (by taking a coat out of a 

car, putting it on the ground underneath the car and denying ownership, 

defendant voluntarily abandoned it). 

Only by affirmative conduct docs a person abandon her privacy 

interest. It requires "act and intent." State v. Evans, !59 Wn.2d 402, 

408, 150 P.3d I 05 (2007). Mr. Samalia is accused of fleeing from a car 

without remembering to take his cell phone. He did not toss it into the 

bushes. He left it in the car, in the console. CP 29. Given the wealth of 
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private infom1ation contained in the phone, it is hard to believe that he 

wanted to abandon it. Unlike the jacket in Rc~vnolds. the cell phone did 

not contain drugs that would prompt Mr. Samalia to divorce himself 

from it. Instead, it contnined private infon11ation which no person 

would want revealed to the government without pem1ission or a 

wan·ant, which the State did not have. 

A cell phone is a readily recognizable personal effect that is 

protected from search without a wan-ant. See State v. Parker, 139 

Wn.2d 486, 498-500, 987 P.2d 73 (1999). Mr. Samalia did not 

intentionally abandon it voluntarily in order to distance himself from 

his phone and because his privacy interest remained. the State needed a 

warrant to search its contents. 

The voluntmy abandonment test used in Emns, Dugas and the 

cases on which they rely is rooted in the Fourih Amendment. This test 

asks whether the owner had a reasonable expectation of privacy in the 

prope1iy. 159 Wn.2d at 409. These cases do not separately consider 

\vhether ai1iele I, section 7 requires a different inquiry, even while 

mentioning the broader protections afforded under ar1icle I, section 7. 

See Emns, 159 vVn.2d at 412; Dugas, 109 Wn.2d at 595-96. 
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It is well-established that atiicle 1, section 7 is broader than the 

foUtih Amendment and uses a different analytical framework. State 1'. 

Meneese, 174 Wn.2d937, 946, 282 P.3d 83 (2012). Article I, section 7 

requires a two-pati analysis: ( 1) whether state action constituted a 

disturbance of private atiairs and ( 2) whether the intrusion was justified 

by authority oflaw. Buelna Valdez, 167 Wn.2d at 772 (quoting York v. 

TVahkiakum Sch. Dist. No. 200, 163 Wn.2d 297, 306, 178 P.3d 995 

(2008)). 

"Under Const. art. I,~ 7, the focus is whether the 'private 

affairs' of an individual have been unreasonably violated rather than 

whether a person's expectation of privacy is reasonable." Boland. 115 

Wn.2d at 580. The FoUtih Amendment protects a person's from 

"unreasonable" searches while "article I. section 7 prohibits any 

disturbance of an individual's private affairs 'without authority of 

law."' Buelna Valdez, 167 Wn.2d at 772; State v. Jorden, 160 Wn.2d 

121, 136, 156 P .3d 893 (2007) (after decades of review, "now well

established" that couti should "engage in independent state 

constitutional analysis" when facing claimed violation of miicle L 

section 7). 
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The location of the search "is indetennitiitive'' when the issue is 

\Vhether the State unreasonably intruded into an individual's private 

affairs. Boland, 115 Wn.2d at 580. There is no "automobile exception" 

allotting a reduced expectation of privacy in cars under article I, section 

7. State v. Snapp, 17 4 Wn.2d 177, 191-92. 275 P.3d 289 (20 12). The 

State bears the burden of proving an exception to the waJTant 

requirement. /d. at 188. 

Mr. Samaha's cell phone contains an array of private 

infonnation that is protected by miicle I, section 7 from governmental 

trespass \Vithout a \varrant. Because his phone is a private affair and he 

did not consent to its search, article I, section 7 requires authority of 

law, such as a warrant. Officer Yates did not have a warrant when he 

looked through private infom1ation stored on Mr. Samaha· s cell phone. 

He read through content on the phone, including listed contacts and 

dialed numbers from Mr. Samalia 's phone based on people Mr. Samalia 

had contacted. Examining who Mr. Samalia knew and called from his 

cell phone is no ditTerent from looking at the history of phone numbers 

dialed at issue in Gunwa/1. There is no reason to believe Mr. Samalia 

left behind his cell phone intentionally. He could not have returned to 
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the scene and retrieved it because Officer Yates kept it, passing it to 

another officer to continue the investigation. See CP 29: RP 61. 

This Couti should grant review ofthe published and divided 

Cout1 of Appeals opinion to determin0 \vhether police have authority of 

law to access data on a cell phone when the owner leaves the cell phone 

behind without disavowing ownership of it. 

F. CONCLUSION 

Petitioner Adrian Samalia respectfully requests that review be 

granted pursuant to RAP 13.4 (b).