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

This issue now before this court came before the trial court on 

three occasions. The first time, on March 29,2013, the trial court heard 

this issue during a CrR 3.6 hearing without any live testimony from 

officers or other witnesses. RP 4-20. The court ruled; 

THE COURT: And I guess I would also -- because Evans 
cites -they say, even in the head note, a comment about 
curbside garbage, and uses that, I would suggest, as a segue 
for a discussion about the enhanced protections one has 
under our State Constitution 
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versus the Federal Constitution. And in that particular case, 
it was State versus Boland at 115 Wn.2d 571. And there, 
the - the garbage can was the defendant's, was not 
somebody else's garbage can. It was his own garbage can. 
And, I guess, to that extent, had this been Mr. Samalia's 
car, I would -- certainly, we'd have a different outcome. But 
the fact is is that I believe the- the item, regardless of its 
nature, was abandoned, and was properly examined, so 
Motion to Suppress is denied. 

I will commit to the phone, because that, I've got in front of 
me. I don't know how anybody could assert any 
expectation of privacy, really, other than the owner of the 
car. 

THE COURT: I mean, any more than you could if it was 
laying on the street. 
So Motion to Suppress denied. RP 17-19 

Subsequently the trial court heard the case again as a bench trial 

and a motion for reconsideration ofthe CrR 3.6 hearing. (RP 26-79) At 

the end of the bench trial Samalia's counsel requested the court reconsider 

the previous denial of the motion to suppress. 

THE COURT: ... But, again, I'm still left with Mr. Samalia, 
or somebody later identified as Mr. Samalia, was driving a 
stolen car. The officer responded to a stolen car alert. He 
called, Dispatch confirmed that the vehicle was stole. 
Pulled the vehicle over. And the issue is in -- to a certain 
extent 
is did Mr. Samalia abandon or discard that property in 
response to police conduct? And I think 
he clearly did. He fled the vehicle when the vehicle was 
stopped by the officer, and in response to the officer's 
commands to stop and or to get out of the vehicle, he fled. 
The question is was the conduct by Officer Yates illegal? 
And I don't think it is. 
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The fact that the car was stolen has some meaning, and 
maybe it's more of a commonsense meaning, I don't know. 
If the car-- if he had had leaped out of the car and -- and 
the phone had dropped to the ground next to it, you know, 
he - is that an abandonment? Where he abandoned it, I'm 
not sure is exactly very important. It's kind of like a 
backpack, I suppose, in a way. 

I think it's -- the -- the phone was abandoned, the fact 
that there was-- Ms. Telles was engaged in some 
conversation with law enforcement that led to Mr. 
Samalia's discovery. and perhaps unbeknownst to her, is 
not particularly significant. I don't think she's charged in 
this, is she? 
MR. CHEN: No. 
THE COURT: So I don't see that that is-- that's 
significant. I-- I -- I do know that this is a hot-button 
issue, and I can tell you we it was the topic of a session at 
a judicial conference. But I think the decision I made was 
correct, that this was an abandoned item and the officer-
the -- is looking at it, that is an exception to the -
exception to the warrant requirement and was appropriate. 
RP 73-4 

And finally at the end of the bench trial at the time the court was 

determining the defendant's guilt; 

THE COURT: All right. Can I see that report? 
All right. Well, the testimony from Officer Yates was 

that he had contact with Shawna Neiman and took the 
report of a stolen motor vehicle from her. He also 
indicated it was quite unusual that, having taken that 
report, he would also be the one in his vehicle to receive a 
hit on his onboard camera or license plate reader. 

There is -- Exhibit D is the Yakima Police Department 
multipurpose signature form, indicating that the vehicle 
had been stolen. The license was 566VMK. That's the 
same license of the vehicle that was stopped by Officer 
Yates on December 4, 20 11. 

Mr. Samalia was identified by Officer Yates in -- as the 
driver of the vehicle owned by Shawna Neiman. She's 
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indicated it was stolen. There was no testimony offered 
that would suggest that he had any right to possess that 
vehicle. 

Consequently, I would find that he knowingly possessed 
a stolen motor vehicle and that it was withheld from 
Shawna Neiman. I think that's sufficient, unless somebody 
wants to argue about that. 

THE COURT: Yes, there is. He knowingly possessed the 
vehicle. It was a stolen motor vehicle, as has been 
previously described. Did he know that it was stolen? I 
think circumstantial evidence would suggest that, yes, he 
did. He was in possession of it, having -- of the stolen 
vehicle. He had no right to it. He fled the vehicle when 
police encountered him, which would suggest, again, that 
he had no right to possession of the vehicle. RP 77-9 

In addition the Court of Appeals set forth the facts in its decision, 

the State will also rely on that statement and shall address specific areas of 

the facts in the arguments section below. 

D. ARGUMENT 

1. Standards of Review. 

RAP 13 .4(b) Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review; 

This case does not !.) Conflict with any decision by this court, the 

claim by Samalia that the Court of Appeals ruling is incorrect is 

unfounded.;~ This ruling does not conflict with any ruling by any other 

division of the Court of Appeals or for that matter any court. The issue of 

pricy rights to abandon property has been ruled on previously as indicated 

by the cases cited by the Court of Appeals. 3) The ruling of the Court of 
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Appeals does not raise a significant question under either the State or 

Federal Constitution; the ruling merely reiterates the standard that has 

been applied for years regarding abandon property and a criminal right to 

privacy in that item. 

Samalia has not demonstrated that he has met his burden 

demonstrating that one of the reasons set forth in RAP 13.4 has been met. 

This court should not grant review. 

FIRST BASIS FOR REVIEW. 

The content of cell phones are private and protected from warrantless 
searches by police. 

The opinion issued by the Court of Appeals in no manner or means 

diminished a person's expectation of privacy in their cell phone or any 

other device for that matter. What this opinion did was reaffirm that no 

matter what the item is if an individual abandon's property they lose 

certain rights in that property. As the Court of Appeals indicates that 

findings of fact and conclusions of law entered in the trial court were not 

challenged and therefore on review they were and are verities. State v. 

O'Neill. 148 Wn.2d 564, 571 62 P.3d 489 (2003). (Slip opinion at 1) 

Petitioner addresses phones and GPS and the ability of an 

electronic device to store vast amounts of information and personal data in 

this first section of the petition, what they do not address in this section 
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and mischaracterize in the second section is the issue that was pivotal in 

the Court of Appeals decision, abandonment. 

No one is disputing that article I, section 7 provides protection for 

the citizens of this State nor is there any dispute that this article has been 

interpreted to allow our citizens greater protections, State v. Valdez, 167 

Wn.2d 761, 224 P.3d 751 (2009); State v. Harrington, 167 Wn.2d 656, 

222 P.3d 92 (2009). 

Nothing in the opinion issued by the Court of Appeals conflicts 

with any of the cases cited by Samalia in this portion of his petition. 

None ofthe cases cited by Samalia in this section devote one 

single word to the privacy rights when a person steals a car, is pulled over 

by the police driving that stolen car, exits the car against the orders of the 

stopping officer who orders the occupant to stay in the car, with his 

weapon drawn, then the driver flees the scene abandoning the car, the 

passenger in the car and, the contents of that car. State v. Hinton, 179 

Wn.2d 862, 319 P.3d 9 (2014); State v. Gunwall, 106 Wn.2d 54,720 P.2d 

808 (1986); Lewis v. State Dept. ofLicensing, 157 Wn.2d 446, 139 P.3d 

1078 (2006); State v. Townsend, 147 Wn.2d 666, 57 P.3d 384 

( 1996)(Court upheld search of email and client to client messages

Defendant impliedly consented to recording); State v. Jackson, 150 Wn.2d 

251, 76 P.3d 217 (2003); State v. Boland, 115 Wn.2d 571, 800 P.2d 1112 
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(1990); Riley v. California,_ U.S._, 134 S.Ct. 2473, 189 L.Ed. 430 

(2014): United States v. Payton, 573 F.3d 859, (9th Cir 2009) (Search of 

home computer invalid because the search warrant was issued for 

controlled substances and related material, not for computer- child 

pornography was found on that computer by officers who manipulated the 

computer while in the home of Payton.), or United States v. Schesso, 730 

F .3d I 040, (9th Cir. 20 13) (Seizure of home computer for child 

pornography upheld) 

Petitioner states that the flight is "alleged" that is absurd, it is a 

fact, a verity on appeal. (Petition at II) The State is at a complete loss 

as to how Petitioner can in good faith argue that the facts are not the facts. 

Sarna! ia did not challenge the findings, they are the facts of this case no 

matter how many times he uses the word "alleged." 

Finding II; 

On December 4, 2011, Officer Ryan Yates was 
driving westbound on West Lincoln Avenue at North 
16th Avenue when his vehicle license plate reader 
indicated that he had passed a stolen vehicle. When 
the officer turned around, Washington License plate 
number 566VMK was in the turn lane and stopped at 
the traffic light. Officer Yates confirmed that the 
vehicle was stolen through radio. He then followed 
the vehicle as it was turning northbound on North 16th 
A venue and then Eastbound on McKinley A venue. 
The vehicle then stopped in the 1500 block of 
McKinley Avenue. The driver then got out ofthe 
vehicle and faced towards the officer. He would not 
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obey the officer's commands and then began running 
eastbound, then southbound through yards. Off. Yates 
was not able to locate the driver. (Appendix A) 

Once again "The facts are derived mainly from the trial court's 

unchallenged CrR 3.6 findings of fact that are, therefore, verities on 

appeal. State v. O'Neill, 148 Wn.2d 564, 571,62 P.3d 489 (2003)." Slip 

opinion at 1 

SECOND BASIS FOR REVIEW. 
Substantial public interest favors review of the divided Court of Appeals 
opinion based on the ubiquity of cell phone possession and the breadth of 
personal information contained. 

With all due respect to Judge Siddoway the dissent ignores the fact 

that Samalia did not "leave" this phone behind at the "scene of a crime." 

He ran from the scene, a public street abandoning the stolen car after being 

ordered by an officer to remain in the stolen car, the officer was not able to 

apprehend him after giving chase. No matter how many time Samalia 

repeats that this case is about the phone and the content of the phone that 

will still not make the facts different what they actually are and what those 

factual verities are, stolen car, abandon property. 

The "ubiquitous" nature of a phone nor the ability of those devices 

does not vest it with the properties needed to comply with RAP 13.4. Nor 

does it, once again, surmount the fact that this device was abandon as 

Samalia ran from the stolen car containing the phone. 
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This court should not consider that argument that the officers 

should have merely applied for a telephonic search warrant pursuant to 

State v. Schultz, 170 Wn.2d 746, 248 P.3d 484 (2011) This was never 

raised in any court or in any briefing previously. Just as with a matter 

presented to this court after review has been accepted so to raising an issue 

for the first time in a petition for review should not be allowed. State v. 

Buchanan, 138 Wn.2d 186, 196, 978 P.2d I 070 (1999) "The court 

generally will not consider issues which are not set forth in the petition for 

review, RAP 13.7(b), nor arguments raised for the first time on appeal. 

See, e.g., Hansen v. Friend, 118 Wn.2d 476,485,824 P.2d 483 (1992)." 

Even if this court were to consider this newly raised issue, the 

claim that the officers could have or should have applied for a search 

warrant is specious. 

They were in pursuit of a fleeing felon and now for the first time 

Samalia indicated they should have stop the ongoing investigation, a 

literal hot pursuit, to find a judge that will authorize the search of the car 

and this phone. As this court is well aware there are specific exceptions 

to the search warrant requirement, exigent circumstances include: (1) hot 

pursuit; (2) fleeing suspect; (3) danger to arresting officer or to the public; 

(4) mobility of the vehicle; (5) mobility or destruction of the evidence.'" 
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State v. Tibbles, 169 Wash.2d 364, 370,236 P.3d 885 (2010) (quoting 

State v. Counts, 99 Wash.2d 54, 60, 659 P.2d 1087 (1983)). 

THIRD BASIS FOR REVIEW. 

Mr. Samalia did not voluntarily abandon his privacy interest in his 
telephone when he allegedly fled from the police. 

As stated, numerous times, above there is no dispute that Samalia 

ran when ordered to remain in the stolen car, the officer positively 

identified Samalia as the man who exited the driver's side door of the 

stolen vehicle and rand when ordered to remain in the car. The State is at 

a total loss to think of a factual scenario that would more simply and 

clearly evidence "abandonment" than running away from something and 

never returning. As the Court stated; 

The question is whether the defendant relinquished his 
reasonable expectation of privacy by discarding the 
property. Evans. 159 Wn.2d at 408. The defendant bears the 
burden of showing he had an actual, subjective expectation 
of privacy and that his expectation was objectively 
reasonable. Evans, 159 Wn.2d at 409. 

A critical factor in determining whether 
abandonment has occurred is the status of the area where the 
searched item was located. State v. Hamilton, 179 Wn. App. 
870, 885, 320 P.3d 142 (2014). "Generally, no abandonment 
will be found if the searched item is in an area where the 
defendant has a privacy interest." I d. Here, the search area 
was an unattended stolen vehicle that Mr. Samalia had been 
driving and had fled from when a police officer approached 
and directed him to return to the vehicle. A suspect's hasty 
flight under these circumstances is sufficient evidence of an 
intent to abandon the vehicle. See United States v. Tate. 821 
F.2d 1328, 1330 (8th Cir.1987) (suspect who fled unlocked 
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vehicle parked on public road abandoned expectation of 
privacy); see also Kurtz v. People. 494 P.2d 97, 103 (Colo. 
1972), overruled on other grounds by People v. Howard. 
599 P .2d 899 (Colo. 1979) (items seized from vehicle were 
admissible based on the abandonment of the vehicle, the 
flight of the accused from the scene on foot, and the fact the 
accused remained at large at the time of the search). Thus, 
the status of the area searched shows abandonment. We 
conclude, Mr. Samalia did not have a privacy interest in the 
searched area. 

Samalia has endlessly addressed the law regarding this type of 

device and yet he never meets the burden of showing this was his phone or 

that he had a privacy interest in the location of the device or the device 

itself. 

The State presented facts and argument in its opening brief 

demonstrating that there was nothing in the record before the trial court to 

prove the claim that this phone was Samalia's. The Court of Appeals did 

not address that additional argument because it found the stolen car and 

the phone were abandon, the court found the abandonment was clear and 

the court did not need to address the other theories posited by the State. 

Samalia requests that this court analyze this case using Article I, 

section 7 of our state constitution. The Court of Appeals addresses this 

section of the Washington State constitution at the very beginning of the 

opinion, it does not just ignore the different standard for the Fourth 

Amendment and article I, section 7. Slip opinion 3-5, Also a review of 
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the cases relied upon by the majority opinion reveals that the two primary 

cases, State v. Evans, 159 Wn.2d 402,407,150 P.3d 105 (2007) and State 

v. Reynolds, 144 Wn.2d 282, 287,27 P.3d 200 (2001) address both the 

Fourth Amendment and Article I, section 7; 

It is undisputed that the search of Evans's truck and the 
seizure ofthe briefcase found within it was warrantless. 
Warrantless searches and seizures may be permitted within the 
confines of "'a few specifically established and well
delineated exceptions'" to the warrant requirements of the 
fourth amendment to the United States Constitution and 
Washington Constitution article I, section 7. State v. 
Chrisman, 100 Wash.2d 814,817,676 P.2d 419 (1984) 
(quoting Katz v. United States, 389 U.S. 347, 357, 88 S.Ct. 
507, 19 L.Ed. 2d 576 (1967)). The exceptions are ""'jealously 
and carefully drawn""' and the "burden rests with the State to 
prove the presence of one." State v. Hendrickson, 129 
Wash.2d 61, 72, 71,917 P.2d 563 (1996) (quoting State v. 
Bradley, 105 Wash.2d 898, 902, 719 P .2d 546 (1986) (citing 
Coolidge v. New Hampshire. 403 U.S. 443, 454, 91 S.Ct. 
2022, 29 L.Ed. 2d 564 (1971))). 

One of the exceptions to the warrant requirement is for 
voluntarily abandoned property. State v. Reynolds, 144 
Wash.2d 282, 287, 27 P.3d 200 (2001). As we explained in 
Reynolds. "Needing neither a warrant nor probable cause, law 
enforcement officers may retrieve and search voluntarily 
abandoned property without implicating an individual's rights 
under the Fourth Amendment or under article I, section 7 of 
our state constitution." !d. 
Emphasis mine. (Evans at 407-08, footnotes omitted.) 

E. CONCLUSION 

Samalia's claims do not meet the requirements of RAP 13.4. The 

actions of the trial court and the Court of Appeals well-reasoned decision 

should not be disturbed.